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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271-9474 |.80a«52-3345 Ext 9474

Fax: 003-27M230 TDD Access: 1-800-73S-2964 www.dhbs.nh.gov

November 12, 2020

His Excellency. Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (VC#177511-B001), Keene, NH for the ongoing
provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive Services to individuals and families who are
experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exerdsirrg a
renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $73,084 from $172,958 to $246,042 and by
extending the completion date from June 30. 2021, to August 31. 2021, effective November 1,
2020, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Govemor and Council on June 19, 2019, item #46
and most recently amended with Govemor and Council approval on May 6, 2020, Item #37.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget OfTice,
if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42308314

$85,230 $0 $85,230

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42308317

$87,728 $60,714 $148,442

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42308317

$0 $12,370 $12,370

Total $172,958 $73,084 $246,042

77te DtpariflwM of Health and Human Seruicea' Mission is to join communiiies ond families
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health ond independence.
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EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the U.S. Department of Housing and Development
(HUD) grant award required an expansion to the scope of work for this contract in order to
consolidate services provided by the vendor in another contract which expired October 31, 2020,
(Continuum of Care, Central Street Permanent Housing Program, approved by Governor and
Council on October 23.2019, Item #23). Additional time was needed to finalize the revised scope
of work prior to the vendor accepting the terms of the agreement. Approval of this amendment,
with the retroactive effective date of November 1,2020, will prevent a lapse in services critical to
the Department's ability to ensure availability of permanent housing options and homeless
outreach services in Cheshire and Sullivan Counties. This request is Sole Source because
federal regulations require the Department to specify each vendor's name during the annual,
federal Continuum of Care (CoC) Program renewal application process, prior to the grant award
being Issued. Prior to the renewal application process, the Department solicits proposals from
potential vendors to participate In the CoC Program and includes selected vendors in the
application. Based on the application evaluation process, HUD then directs the Departrnent to
provide grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of this request is to continue a Permanent Housing Program that delivers
rental and leasing assistance, service access and supportive services to individuals and families
who are experiencing homelessness.

The program facilitates the movement of homeless and chronically homeless Individuals
and families to permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency. Approximately forty (40)
individuals and/or families will be served from November 1, 2020 to August 31, 2021.

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans, the vendor will facilitate the movement of each participant into sustained
permanent housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services to
maximize each participant's ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted senrices using the following reports and
information:

• Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information, as well
as income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for two (2) months of the remaining one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving individuals and families who
are vulnerable in unsafe and potentially deadly situations. Additionally, if data is not collected as
required by the contract, the Department will be in non-compliance with federal regulations, vtrhich
could result In a loss of federal funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive sen/ices.
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Area served: Cheshire and Sullivan Counties

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN #NH0019L1T001912

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Permanent Housing Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Continuum of Care,
SCS Permanent Housing Program Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Continuum of Care, SCS Permanent Housing Program contract, (formerly
known as Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing Program (Cheshire County) contract), (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Southwestern
Community Services, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place
of business at 63 Community Way, Keene, NH, 03431.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019 (Item #46), as amended on May 6, 2020 (Item #37), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, Increase the" price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and'

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

August 31, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$246,042.

3. Remove all references to "Permanent Housing Program (Cheshire County)" and replace with "SCS
Permanent Housing Program" throughout the Agreement.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #2,
Scope of Services, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers

1.2.4.1. NH0060L1T001806 (SPY 2020

1.2.4.2. NHQ019L1T001912 (SFY 2021

1.2.4.3. NH0019L1T001912 (SFY 2022

July 1.2019-June 30, 2020)

July 1.2020-June 30, 2021)

July 1,2021 - August 31, 2021)

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7., Subparagraph 1.2.7.1.,
to read:

1.2.7.1. Not to exceed $246,042.

j/w
Southwestern Communitv Services. Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

10/27/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-18-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Permanent Housing Program

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program:

July 1, 2019 - July 1, 2020 - July 1, 2021 -
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 August 31, 2021

1.2.8.1. Operations: $83,282 $144,846 $12,070

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $1.948 $3.596 $300

1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount: $85,230 $148,442 $12,370

[i
sVSouthwestern Community Services, Inc. / amendment #2 Contractor Initials^

'  10/27/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-18-A02 Page 2 of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Permanent Housing Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective November 1, 2020, upon Governor and

Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

—OocuSlgntd by;

11/4/2020

Date Name^'''^^^"® santamei io
Title: Director

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

10/27/2020

Date

-DocuSignad by:

Jd(uA-

Title: ceo

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-18-A02

Amendment #2

Page 3 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, SCS Permanent Housing Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

11/10/2020

Date pinos

OoeuSioned by:

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Amendment #2

SS-202a-BHS-04-PERMA-18-A02 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, SCS Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to Ail Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS)
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. The State, as
the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, and/or, the recipient of the CoC funding,
has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence in the application process.
However, the State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the
State be liable for costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to
the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1.4: For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.
These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as the
records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.8. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records. /—"

p-
Coniinuum of Care Program, Exhibit A- Amendment #2 Contractor Initials^
SCS Permanent Housing Program 10/27/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-18-A02 Page 1 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, SCS Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing,and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program serving approximately forty
(40) individuals and/or families with a mental illness, substance use issue, or other disabilities in the
Counties of Cheshire and Sullivan, and which includes, but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing.

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and. at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

/

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51 (c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only If the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating violence.
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third- such as a

friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This (n^^^be written
Continuum of Care Program, ExWbit A-Amendment #2 Contractor Initials^
SCS Permanent Housing Program 10/27/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA-18-A02 Page 2 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, SCS Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge Is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, govemment benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Procram Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-

homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant. Including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F):and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housina Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

/

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Oraanizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.^^.

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts reouirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d). p.
Continuum of Care Program, Exhibit A- Amendment #2 Contractor initials^
SCS Permanent Housing Program 10/27/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA.ie.A02 Page 3 of 5 Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, SCS Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g).

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b).

2.6.3. Affirmativelv Furthering Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Soecified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD.

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentialitv. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to
ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and state and federal laws and regulations;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date,
an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Admlhlstratlon
Contimjum of Care Program. Exhibit A- Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
SCS Permanent Housing Program

.  10/27/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-18-A02 1 Page 4 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, SCS Permanent Housing Program

Exhibit A - Amendment U2

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the HUD New Project
Application #SF-424; and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A
- Amendment #2, in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as
amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program as outlined in Section 2.2.
Exhibit A - Amendment #2, and as outlined in other, written HUD policies and directives as
appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Participants experience increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources; employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access and referrals; and

6.2.1.2.3. Service Coordination Partners for educational, vocational, employment and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3., Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A - Amendment #2.

JAi
Conlinuum of Care Program,
SCS Permanent Housing Program

SS-2020-BHS-04-PeRMA-18-A02

Exhibit A- Amendment U2

Page 5 of S
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Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner. Sccreiar>' of Slate of ihc Sinic of New ilampshirc. do hereby certify ihrn SOUTH WESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. is a New Ilampshirc NonproRi Corporation rcgi-stcred to transact business in New

I lampshirc on May 19, 1965.1 further wnify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrctar>* of State's pflicc have been

received and is in good standing as far as this olTicc is concerned.

Business ID: 65514

Certificate Number: 0004822550

y
Ik

o

4*

IN TES riMONV WHEREOF.

I hereto set my^hand and cause to be afH.vcd

the .Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 3rd dav of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Sccrctarv of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Kevin Watterson

{Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)
hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected ficer of Southwestern Community Services Inc.

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on February 18 , 20 16 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and
voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That John A Manning. CEO

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)
(may list more than one person).

is duly authorized on behalf of Southwestern Community Services Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
the State (Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which" this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts witi^the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 10/29/2Q2Q

Jignature of Elected Officer
Name: Kevin Watterson

Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT^CONSmSrlTr^Aii; AFFORDED BY THE POLiCIHS
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLD^ CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING IN8URER(S). AUTHORLTID

subrogation is waived. subfecilT
certlflof holder In ll»u of Kueh certificate dots not confer righto lo lh«

PROOUCER

Clark - Mortenson Insurance
P.O. Box 606
Keene NH 03431
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Southwestern Community Services Inc
PC Box 603
Keene NH 03431
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Maine Employer Mutual Insurance Co.
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OTHER:
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AU OWNED
AUTOS
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EXCESS LUO

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

OED |X I RFTEWTIONl
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WORKERS COMPENSATION
AKDCMPtOrERS-UAaiLrrY

^PROPRIBTOIUPARTNER/eXECUTIVE
OPFICERMEUUR SXCLU0CO7
(•tandateiy in NH}

If W

0
O^K^RimQwffloPERATinNS MIon

PHPK2000W2

PHPK200C7M

PHUBsaiere

0/3Qf3O2O

0007020

0002020

3102800708 1/1/2020

fMWDOnYYW LMTS

IeaCH OCCURRENCE

MEO EXP jArn crw pf>en)

»1,000.000

S 100.000

0302021

PERSONAL t ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • CQMP/OP AGr.

03012021

4/1/2021

WMaNEOStNtJli UmiT
JEl ecddefiH

BODILY INJURY (Par pfton)

800ILY INJURY (Pvacodeio

WOpSRTV ftAMAfig
/Pw«eelrt.^>

EACH OCCURRENCE

t&ooo

t 1,000.000

$2.000.000

$2,000,000

'lOOOOOO

AQOREOATE

ss rpTHT
Ler_

E.L EACH ACCIDENT

E,L CaSEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE

E.L aSEASE-POLICY LIMIT

$2.000,000

$2.000.000

$800,000

$500,000

$500.000

Sch-d^^ m., t, ̂cl^d amor. NJ.c I. fqulr^,
All Officers are Inckxied

CERTIFICATE HQLDPR

Department of Health & Human Services
of Contracts & Procurement Unit

129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

CANCELLATION

THE CANCELLED BEFO IEme EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELiVPBPn m

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS. DEUVERED IN

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

AUTH0Re» REPRESENTATIVE

The ACORD nam- 1 . ® 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rottrJ^.rne ACORD name and logo are roglstorod marics of ACORD
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Vision Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS seeks to create and support a climate within
the communities of southwestern New Hampshire
wherein poverty is never accepted as a chronic or

permanent condition of any person's life.
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Mission Statement

Southwestern Community Services

SCS strives to empower low income people and
families. With dignity and respect, SCS will provide

direct assistance, reduce stressors and advocate for such

persons and families as they lift themselves toward

self-sufficiency.

In partnership and close collaboration with local

communities, SCS will provide leadership and support
to develop resources, programs and services to further

aid this population.
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Financial Statements

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC

AND^RELATED COMPANIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

MAY 31, 2019 AND 2018
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS
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To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

i'RnKi;S,S10\Ai,,lS.S<OATI()N

CERTiriED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS

VVOLFEBORO • NOR'ni CONVtAY

DOVER • CONCORD

STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements for the years then ended, and the related consolidated
statement of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Management's Responsibiiitv for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, Implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' ResDonslbilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits'to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



DocuSign Envelope ID: C771E174-A5CE-4369-6526-77A971E878E1

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Report on Summarized ComDarati\/e Information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2018 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated September 17, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31, 2018, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the
Schedules of Functional Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated. In all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestem Community
Services, Inc.'s intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Interest receivable

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total property

Less accumulated depredation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Investment In related parties
Due from related parties
Cash'escrow and reserve funds
Security deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advances

Interest payable
Current portion of long term debt

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

882,187

1,245,826
51,722
112,000

45.547

2.337.282

19,188,791

554,976
220.291

19,964,058

7.938.217

12,025,841

198,728
59,102

849,334

62,996

384

1,170,544

$  15,533,667

391,613
119,620

233,900

138,740
180,994

49,547
227,221

1,341,635

9.086.445

10,428.080

4,922.671
182,916

5,105,587

$  15,533,667

1,086,895
1,059,922

35,019
112,000
45.547

2.339.383

14,438,178
549,305

39.617

15,027,100

4.880.952

10146.148

88,706
188,523
517,853

51,996

384

647,462

$  13,332.993

124,085
206,178
250,692

135,573
193,931

216,438

1,126,897

8,273,983

9,400.880

3,787,422
144,691

3,932,113

$  13,332,993

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

3
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2019
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Government contracts

Program service fees
Rental Income

Developer fee Income
Support
Sponsorship
Interest income

Forgiveness of debt

Miscellaneous

In-kind contritxjtions

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services
Home energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Housing sendees
Economic development services
Other programs

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

$ 10,672,702

2,485.405

995,380

326,558

70,893

7,153
388,849
120,697
241,499

15,309,136

With Donor

Restrictions

87,608

15.396.744

5,238,483

2,659,630
1,994,872

2,319,865

721,370
894,986

13,829,406

1,880.406

15.709.812

(313,068)

(6,481)

16.116

(301,433)

3,787,422

1,436,682

125,833

125,833

(87,608)

38.225

38,225

38,225

144,691

2019

Total

$ 10,672,702

2,485,405

995,380

452,391

70,893

7.153
388,849

120,697
241.499

15,434,969

15.434.969

.5,238,483

2,659,830
1,994,872

2,319,8i65
721,370
894.986

13,829.406

1,880.406

15,709.812

(274.843)

(6,481)

16.116

(263,208)

3,932,113

1.436.682

2018

Total

$ 11,055,093
1,868,188

801,642
50,000

509,229

105,286

8,959
75,971

100,772
161.852

14,736,992

14.736.992

4,847,201

2,530,152
2.172,388
2,048,214
728,119
945.391

13,271,465

1.749.700

15,021,165

(284,173)

(4,583)

(1681

(288,944)

3,397,772

623.285

$ 4,922.671 $ 182.916 $ 5.105.587 $ 3,932,113

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net assets $  (263,208) $  (288,944)
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 560,115 467;929
Loss on sale of property 6,481 4,583

(Gain) loss on investment In limited partnerships (18,116) 188

Forgiveness of debt (388,849) (75.971)
(Increase) decrease In assets:

Accounts receivable (185,904) 265,199

Prepaid expenses 5,509 (3,439)
Interest receivable - (4,480)
Due from related parties 44,240 66,149
Security deposits 5,151 (2,623)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 145,829 (53,220)
Accrued expenses (106,905) (38,863)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (16,792) 9,657

Other current liabilities 3,167 (13,125)
Refundable advances (12,937) (44,414)
Interest payable 49,547

-

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (152,672) 286,626

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase) decrease in escrow funds (33,568) 5,846

Proceeds from sale of property 215.000 -

Purchase of property (139,717) (142,791)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 41,715 (136,945)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long tenn debt 40,048 76,143

Repayment of long term debt (160,029) (112.612)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (119,981) (36,469)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (230,938) 115,212

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,086,895 947,175

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 26,230 .  24,508

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $  882,187 $  1,086,895

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP:
Prepaid expenses .
Land and buildings
Furniture and fbctures

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security deposits

Total transfer of assets from newly consolidated LP

Transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP:
Accounts payable
Accrued e>penses
Due to related parties
Long term debt

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consolidated LP

Total partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

Partners' capital previously recorded as Investment in related parties

. Total transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LP

$  203.408 $ 142.467

$  (22,212)
(2.373,335)
(168,237)
(297,913)
(16.151)

$  121,699
20,347

85,181
1,332,075

$  1,559,302

$  1.344,776

91,906

$  1,436,682

(12,328)
(894,504)
(96,338)

(164,110)
(11,467)

$ (2,877,848) $ (1,178,747)

$ 10,810

11,199

304,073

s 326,082

$ 877,173

(53,888)

s 623,285

See Notes to Consolidated Rnanclal Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2019 AND 2018

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (the Organization) is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of
services to the elderly^ disabled, and low-Income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and its conservation,
housing, and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Management Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation.
SCS Housing Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described
below. The Organization is committed to providing respectful support service and
assisting individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them
overcome the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from
governmental contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern

Community Services, Inc. and the following entities as Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting interest in their goveming board. All significant intercompany
items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic consolidated

financial statements.

■  SCS Management Corporation
■  SCS Housing, Inc.
■  SCS Development Corporation
■  SCS Housing Development, Inc.
■  Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
■  Jaffrey Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Jaffrey)-Sold 2/1/19
■  Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
■  Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene

East Side)
■ Winchester Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Winchester)

Consolidation began 8/16/17
■  Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)

Consolidation began 6/30/18
■  Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/19

9
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Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
and related companies have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the Organization to report Information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications. The classes of net
assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
Irhposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained In perpetuity.

As of May 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements Include certain prior-year summarized comparative
Information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such Information ' should be read in
conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarized Information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time It Is
recognized as revenue.

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized If the
service received, creates or enhances long-lived assets or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need
to be purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

10
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Estimates

The presentation of financial statements In conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staternents and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are^ still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

Notes Receivable

The Organization has two notes receivable from an unrelated third party. The
notes receivables are stated at the amount that is expected to be collected at
year end. Interest is accrued at a rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
notes receivable and related interest receivable was $112,000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules'
and regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act
of Congress or Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including the additional,
administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from government agencies. The
future nature of the organization is dependent upon continued support from the
government.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

11
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Property and Depreciation

Purchased property and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life greater than one year. Depreciation is
provided for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 - 40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5 -10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal govemment. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,929, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Revenue Recognition
Amounts received from conditional grants and contracts received for specific
purposes are generally recognized as income to the extent that related expenses
and conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received prior to the
conditions being met are reported as refundable advances. Contributions of cash
and other assets are reported as with donor restrictions if they are received with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. However, if a
restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received.* the
Organization reports the support as without donor restrictions.

income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SCS Management Corporation
are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing
Development, Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss carryforwards totaling $1,012,604 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. These loss carryfonwards may be offset against future
taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS Development
Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin to expire in 2022.

12
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The tax effects of the carryforwards as related to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $212,768 $137,408
Valuation allowance ' (212.768) (137.408)

Deferred tax asset $ $

Drewsville, Jeffrey, Troy Senior, Winchester," Keene East Side, Swanzey, and
Snow Brook are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these entitles. Earnings and losses are Included In the partners'
federal income tax returns based on their share of partnership earnings.
Partnerships are required to file income tax retums with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for
measuring, the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its income
tax returns for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 - 2019), and has
concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

PASS ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an
entity-specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair
value measurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches
to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

13
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Leve! 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable Inputs in
situations vyhere there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions.regarding risk.

The carrying amount of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic
958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandabllity of net asset classification,
deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and
investment return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these
statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods
presented.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rale proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate is 11.96% effective from June 1. 2017 throuah
May 31, 2020. ^

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
the interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 2019 and 2018.
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NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

2019 2018

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 96
Main Street). $ 145,647 $ 154,832

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street). 31,589 32,147

5.5% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (People's United Bank,
Ashuelot). 20,672 31,143

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to" New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pearl). 244,505 244,505

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until
project is sold or refinanced. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (NHHFA, 41-43
Central). 376,363 376,363

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019 and
is now due December 2026. Under the

amendment, interest rate is 4.94% and monthly
installments for principal and interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (People's United Bank, Milestones). 146,515 162,223
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2019 2018

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured ,
by real estate of the Organization (ID Bank,
Keene Office). 2,212,288 2,247.266

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on
contract. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balarice was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). 63,000 63,000

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual interest installments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remaining
balance is still outstanding at May 31, 2019 and is
classified as current. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization {MEDC, Keene
Office/Community VVay). 45,000 45,000

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2,463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.67% and 4.07% at May 31. 2019
and 2018, respectively. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TO Bank, Keene
Office/Community Way). 401,891 414,567

5.19% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $889
through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TO Bank, 45 Central
Street). 94,733 100,254
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2019 2018

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 125,000 150.000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each
year providing the property is. used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
112 Charlestown Road). 75,000 90,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remaining balance is
due. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHHFA, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of
the balance is forgiven each year through 2032
when the remaining balance becomes due. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(ODBC, Second Chance). 344,536 363.677

6.99% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$652 through June 2019. The note is secured by a
vehicle (TCF, Econoline Van). 1,293 8,741

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 19,287 ' 24,564
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2019 2018
Jaffrey - 30-year deferred note payable to the
Town of Jaffrey, New Hampshire. Payment of
principal and accrued interest at 1% were deferred
until the note matures in June 2027. The note was
secured by land and buildings. The balance
included cumulative accrued interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31, 2019 and the balance was forgiven. - 303,651

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $485
through August 2027. The note was secured by
land and buildings (TD Bank). Jaffrey was sold
during the year ended May 31. 2019 and this note
was paid in full. - 41 099

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are
deferred until the note matures in June 2029. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(CDBG). 640.000 640.000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund

■energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 140,210 140.210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December
2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900.000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
mortgage may be released after ten years in
January 2026. The note is secured by real estate
of the Organization (CDFA). 185,899 178,172
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2019 2018

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund
energy efficiency improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHHFA). 228,934 228,934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 282,720

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly installments
of $1,698, including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 377,110

I

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 446,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal and
interest payable at the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash of the borrower determined

by formula, secured by the Partnership's land and
buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term.of the mortgage. 237,173
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Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly installments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's
land and buildings, subject to low income housing
use restrictions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA).

2019

50,436

2018

53,826

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing
mortgage note payable to New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of
the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHHFA). 92,058 92,058

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under
the aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of
11.67% for the period the funds were outstanding
(Federal Home Loan Bank). 150.000 150.000

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs 9,332,609 8,490,421

Unamortized deferred financing costs f18.943)

Less current portion due within one year
9,313,666
227.221

8,490,421
216.438

1

$ 9.086.445 $8,273.98.3

The schedule of maturities of

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

long term debt at May 31, 2019 is as follows:

Amount

$  227,221
121,051

2022 115,864
2023 115,596
2024 118,605

Thereafter 8.634.272

Total
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NOTE 4 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-
cancelable lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods
range from month to month to 2024. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2019 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  78,745

21,677

18,318

1,050

720

120

$  120.630

NOTE 5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May, 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had eamed and vested in the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectively.

NOTE 6 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Is the 100% owner of SOS Housing,
Inc. and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing, Inc. and SOS Housing
Development, Inc. are the general partners often limited partnerships formed to
develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services, Inc;, SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,553,000 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans.
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The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization Is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred
in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization might be required
to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts,
If any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May
31, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 7 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended May 31. 2019 and 2018, SCS Housing. Inc. managed
ten limited partnerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled

.  $313,466 and $322,973, for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.
respectively. Additionally. SOS Housing, Inc. has advanced the limited
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $59,102 and $188,523, respectively, at May 31 2019
and 2018.

NOTES EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for their financial Interests in the following companies:

CItyslde Housing Associates, LP
Marlborough Homes, LP
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates. LP
Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates. LP
Warwick Meadows Housing Associates. LP
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates. LP
Westmill-Senlor Housing, LP
Swanzey Township Housing Associates. LP
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing

Associates, LP
Keene Highland Housing Associates. LP
Pilot Health, LLC

2019 2018

$  (9.500) $  (9.492)
(11) 8

(12,503) (12,491)
(1.897) (1.715)

(21) (17)
222,842 222,846

78 90
- (31,190)

- (60,716)
(260) (243)

- n8.374^

S  198.728
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SCS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01%. partner of Cityside Housing
Associates, LP, Marlborough Homes, LP, Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Associates, LP, a 0.10% partner of Railroad Square Senior
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner in Westmill Senior Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP; and Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Swanzey Township Housing
Associates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates, LP were
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2019 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is included in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
remaining 99.99% owhership interest in Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP was acquired by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership is
included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pilot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilot Health was terminated during
the year ended May 31, 2019.

Summarized financial information for entities accounted for under the equity
method, as of May 31, 2019 and 2018, consists of the following:

2019 2018

Total assets $ 5.745

Total liabilities 2,454 47,461

Capital/Member's equity 3.291 (14.679)

S  5.745 £ 32.782

Income $ 426 $ 84,713

Expenses 661 81.478

Net income (loss) S (235) S 3.235
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NOTE 9 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after, the employee has
reached one' year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's
discretion and totaled $296,009 and $289,969 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

NOTE 10 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

2019 2018

NNECAC-Annual Conference Fund $  5,973 $ 21,327
Stand Down - 4,963
GAPSA/Varm Fund 91,908 118,401
Transport 47,260 -

HS Parents Association 6,575 -

EHS 31.200 -

Total net assets with donor restrictions $  182.916 $ 144,

NOTE 11 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the year ended May 31, 2019, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with notes payable to Community Development
Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of debt income totaled $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2019.

During the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization realized forgiveness of
debt income in connection with notes payable to the County of Cheshire, HUD
and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $75,971 for
the year ended May 31, 2018.
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NOTE 12 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, Southwestern Community
Services, Inc. acquired a partnership interest in three low-income housing limited
partnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount paid for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acquisition, Southwestern Community Services. Inc. became the
general partner. The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the
partnership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2019

Winchester Swanzev Snow Brook

Date of Transfer 08/16/2017 06/30/2018 05/01/2019

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$  24,508
11,467

164,110

990,842

12.328

$ 12,856
7,330

119,061

1,330,231
6.436

$13,374
8,821

178,852
1,211,341

15.776

Total assets 1.203.255 1.475.914 1.428.164

Notes payable
Other Liabilities

304,073
22.009

666,902

87.108

665,173
140.119

Total liabilities 326.082 754.010 805.292

Partners' capital 877,173 721,904 622,872

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties (53.8881 31.190 60.716

Partners' capital transferred $ 823.285 $ 753.094 $ 683.588
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NOTE 13 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY

,  The following represents Southwestern Community Services' financial assets as
of May 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019

Financial assets at year end:

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months ^ 2.247.861

2018

Cash and cash equivalents $  882,187 $  1,086,895
Accounts receivable 1.245.826 1.095,486
Due from related party 59,102 188,523
Notes receivable 112,000 112,000
Interest receivable 45,547 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve funds 849.334 517.853

Total financial assets 3.193.996 3.046.304

Less amounts not available to be used

within one yean

Due from related party (59,102) (188,523)
Notes receivable (112,000) (112,000)
Interest receivable (45,547) (45,547)
Reserve funds (729.486) (444.980)

Total amounts not available within one year (946.135) (791.050)

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$1,224,000 and $1,183,000 at May 31. 2019 and 2018. respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

NOTE 15 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that.provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5, 2019, the date the financial statements were available to be Issued.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2019. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes In net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the, ten percent
de minlmis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestem Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31. 2019.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Boaixi of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related consolidated notes to the
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 5, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (intemal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, oh a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance .with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
consolidated financiakstatement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are .required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's Internal control or on compliance. This report is an Integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Keene, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) and related companies' compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May
31, 2019. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southwestem Community
Services, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
{Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. .

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal fDrogram. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Southwestem Community Services, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Southwestern Community Services, inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s intemal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility, that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federai program will not be prevented, or detected and ,corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in intemai control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that were not Identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance iis solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements'of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Novembers, 2019
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the cx)nsolidated financial
statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. were prepared in accordance with
GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal ' Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompiiance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for. Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs were: U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services; Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, 93.568, and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas. 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000..

9. Southwestem Community Services, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED CQMPANIgS

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2019

There were no findings or questioned costs that were required to be reported in the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2018.
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1  Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Composition - 2020-|

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY

CONSTITUENT

SECTOR

Anne Seattle

Newport Service Organization

Mary Lou Huffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food Shelf

Alstead Friendly Meals

Brianna Trombi

Head Start Policy Council

Parent Representative

open

PRIVATE

SECTOR

open David Edkins

Town of Walpole

1 Kevin Watterson, Chair
Clarke Companies (retired)

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education

River Valley Community College

PUBLIC

SECTOR

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Derek Ferland
Sullivan County Manager

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

City of Keene

open
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John A. Manning

Summary Over 30 years of experience with non-profit organizations, as both an
outside auditor and presently Chief Executive Officer of a large
community action agency.

Experience 2014-Present Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene, NH

Chief Executive Officer

Has overall strategic and operational responsibility for a community action
agency providing services to low and moderate income individuals.
Programs include Head Start. Fuel Assistance, and multiple affordable
housing projects. Responsibilities include maintaining ongoing excellence,
rigorous program evaluation and consistent quality of finance, administration,
fundraising, communications and systems; Works with the Board of Directors
and management team to implement the objectives of SOS's strategic plan.
Actively engages and energizes volunteers, board members, event
committees, partnering organizations and funders. Develops and maintains
strong relationships with the Board of Directors and serve as ex-officio
member of the Board. Leads, coaches, develops and retains a high-
performance management team, Ensures effective systems are in place to
measure work performance, provide regular feedback to funding sources
and community partners.

1990-2014 Southwestern Community. Services Inc.
Keene, NH

Chief Financial Officer

Oversees all fiscal functions Supervises a staff of 7, with an agency
budget of over $ 13,000,000. Also oversees agency property
management department, which manages over 300 units of affordable
housing.

Keene State College Keene, NH1985-1995

Adjunct Professor

Taught evening accounting classes for their continuing education
program.

Keene, NH1978-1990 John A. Manning,
Certified Public Accountant
Provided public accounting services to small and medium sized clients,
including multiple non-profit organizations. Performed certified audits ori
several clients, including Head Start and other non-profit clients
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Kostin and Co. CPA's West Hartford. Ct.1975-1978

Staff Accountant

Perfbrmed all aspects of public accounting for medium sized accounting
firm. Audited large number of privately held and non-profit clients.

Education 1971-1975 University of Mass.
■ B.S. Business Administration in Accounting

Organizations American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
NH Society of Certified Public Accountants

Amherst. Ma.
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Margaret Freeman

Experience

2000 - Present

Southwestern Community Services Inc.
Keene, NH

Chief Financial Officer (2014 - present)
Supervising the quality of accounting and financial reporting of SCS; a Community
Action Agency. Total funding of $18 million; federal, state and local funding sources.
Primary responsibiUties include overseeing the accounting functions, implementation
and monitoring of internal controls, reporting financial position to the Board of
Directors, preparation of the annual A-133 audit, member of agencies Senior Staff.

Fiscal Director (2000-2014)
Responsible to lead and manage the daily operations of the Fiscal Department of SCS.
Primary duties include budget preparation and analysis, financial statement preparation
and audit coordination.

1993-2000

Emile J. Legere Management Corp
Keene, NH

Accountant

Provided bookkeeping for real estate management/development corp.. Managed 16
affordable housing properties. Responsible for cash management, general ledger, A/P,
A/R, financial statement prep, and audit prep. Leasing Manager of large -
commercial/retail property responsible for lease management and marketing of over 30
retail spaces.

Education

Leadership New Hampshire, Graduate 2011

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
M.B.A., 1999

Keene State College, Keene, NH
B.S., Management, 1991; concentration Mathematics and Computer Science
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Betb Daniels

Experience ' '

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Chief Operating Officer 03/2016-Present
• Responsible for all day-to-day program operations of the agency
•  Supervise Program Directors, including WIC, Energy, and Housing Stabilization
•  Ensure that all state and federal regulations are followed while those in need receive a smooth delivery

of service

Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008 - 12/2016
•  Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor

Senior Energy Assistance, Wealherization, HRRP, CORE, and Assurance 16 as well as the employment
programs Workplace Success, Work Experience Program, and WIA.

Workforce Development Director 11/2006-10/2008
•  Supervise, direct, coach, and encourage staff of six within four programs
•  Collaborate with agency staff, community members and state contract holders to achieve common goals,

including agency name recognition and program success
•  Perform all SCS Program Director tasks including PPRs and budget management

Families @ Work Employment Specialist 03/2006 - 11 /2006
• Managed a caseload of fihy (50) clients throughout the Keene, Claremont, Concord, and Nashua areas
• Worked closely with staff from Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and Southern New Hampshire

Services

• Gained a strong working knowledge of all SCS programs for referral purposes

Second Start, Concord, NH
Career Development Specialist \ i /2004 - 03/2006
•  Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
• Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
• Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
• Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Nina's Family Daycare, Swanzey, NH 10/2003 - 11 /2004
Day care Provider

•  Responsible for meal planning, payment records, supplies, and activities
• Acquired CPR & First Aid certification

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
• Responsible for all daily operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
•  Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
•  Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes

Case Manager, Welfare-to- Work 05/2000 - 09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
• Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services, Immigration & Naturalization

Services, community agencies, and SCS
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Education and Training

Results Oriented Management & Accountability (ROMA)

Grant Writing Workshop
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention
Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training
Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers ■
CareerTrack

2016-2017

05/2012

2012

2010-2011

11/2007

How to Supervise People
CareerTrack

11/2007

Career Development Facilitator Training
National Career Development Association
120-hour NCDA training

Certified Workforce Development Specialist
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bloodbome Pathogens
Home Health Care

09/2005

06/2005

01/2003

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services
Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

05/2002

References Available
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SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS
Proficient in; Word, Excel, PowerPoint, internet, Outlook, Photoshop,
Ability to prioritize in a fast paced environment and to learn new tasks quickly and effectively
Dedicated, reliable and responsible
Extensive background in Social Services, Properly Management, Finance, and Customer Service

EDUCATION

Psychology with a specialization in counseling I999
B-S Business Management

Kecne State College
Kecne, NH 03435

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY

Hendei^on & Boslcy Property Management 8/02-Present
President mu

Keene, NH

•  Adhering to NH State housing laws and government housing programs
•  Advertising and marketing of vacant apartments, creating leases, performing credit checks
•  Property inspections and maintenance- Including basic carpentry, landscaping etc.
•  Research and management of investment opportunities

Southwestern Community Services 05/16-Present
Director of Housing Stabilization Services Keenc NH

•  Se^i^fc?s progi^^ systems to provide efficient operations of all Housing Stabilization
•  Manages and leads assigned staff to ensure SCS policies and procedures are followed in a manner

consistent with the organization s mission, values, and culture.

•  employees and oversees the orientation and training of all assigned
• Maintain compliance with State/Goveniment/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Community Services 10/07-05/16
Assistant Director of Housing Stabilization Services Keene NH

• Monitor quality of services, operation of assigned programs, facilities, and staff.
•  Process and certify tcnaijt/client applications for all Supportive Housing Programs; facilitate move-

rents/subsidies utilizing Cfassic Real Estate Sol4are;trLkrd Sheetall match documentation; recertify- tenants when necessary and in a timely manner.
• Maintain compliance with State/Goveriiment/Agency protocols, procedures, and reporting.

Southwestern Community Services 02/03-10/07
Long Term Transitional Housing Program Administrator Keene, NH

•  Responsibilities iricliide: Assisting the homeless of Cheshire County with budgeting and referrals to
other needed services; Advocating on behalf of clients to create new networks and improve current
relationships; providing counsel through tough transitions, as well as, creating and maintaining an
environment of success through programs such as Mediation Training, Consumer Credit
Counseling, Psychological Therapy, Parenting Classes, and First Time Homebuyers programs.

•  Basic maintenance of shelter properties and inventory control
•  Responsible to track data and create statistical reports based on Infoniiation collected to assist in

budget allocations for Southwestern Community Services
Coldwcll Banker / Tattcrsall 1/02-3/04
Real Estate Sales Associate Keene NH

•  Assisting buyers and sellers of real estate through customer/client interaction
•  Informing clients/customers of federal and state regulations, financing options, and negotiating
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Data Collector Keene, NH

•  Assured accurate and consistent real-estate assessments with the emphasis in field work
•  Position required strong attention to detail with the emphasis in property measurement and

appraisal as well as requiring strong customer skill by acting as a liaison between town assessors
office and the property owner

MonadDet 8/99-8/01
Customer Service Supervisor Keene NH

•  Responsibilities include maintaining all major accounts and new account data; managing projects
and delegating responsibilities, A/R and A/P reconciliation, Collections of delinquent accounts.

•  Financial Analysis and Trend Monitoring, Billing Systems Analyst
•  Direct mediation and resolution of customer service issues.

AWARDS RECEIVED

•  Delta Mu Delta: National Business Honor Soclety
•  Psi Chi: National Psychology Honor Society

CONTINUING EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

04/18/2007 Certified Occupancy Specialist - National Center for Housing Management
09/23/2008 Successful completion of "Landlord and Tenant Law" seminar - Lorman Educational Services
02/23/2016 HUD Certified Housing Quality Standards Inspector

01/21/2016 Completed 8.5 hours ofNonviolent Crisis Intcircntion training
04/26/2013 Certification In Fair Housing Law - Granite State Managers Association
08/10/2016 Blood Borne Pathogen Training

08/24/2016 6 hours of comprehensive low income housing tax credit training-Johnson Consulting Services, Inc
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES INC
SCS PHP

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
John Manning CEO $132,080 0 0
Meg Freeman CFO $90,854 0 0
Beth Danieis COO $71,615 0 0
Craig Henderson Director of Housing

Stabilization
$51,043 0 0
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Lori A. Shibincde

Commissioner

Christine L. SontiniellO

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

^  129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 0330J
603-271.9474 I.800-852.334S Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TOD Access: 1.000-735-2964 wrww.dhhs,nh.gov

April 22. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below to
provide Permanent Housing and Coordinated Entry Programs and Supportive Services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of
Care Program, by exercising contract renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by
$1,657,969 from $1.606.764 to $3,264,733 and by extending the completion dates from June 30.
2020 to June 30. 2021 effective July 1, 2020 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever
is later. The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 19. 2019. item
#46. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

Community
Action

Partnership
Strafford

County.
Dover, NH

177200-

8004
Statewide $38,524 $38,524 $77,048

Community
Action

Program
Belknap-
Merrimack

Counties, Inc..
Concord. NH

177203-

B003
Statewide $86,722 $86,722 $173,444

FIT/NHNH,

Inc.,

Manchester.

NH

157730-

8001
Concord $99,046 $101,469 $200,515

FIT/NHNH,

Inc..

Manchester.

NH

157730-

8001
Concord $68,585 $68,585 $137,170

Tht Ckporlmenl of Health arid Human Services Mission is to join commiinilics and families
in providing opporlttnilics for citizens to achieve health ond independence.

r.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and (he Honorable Council

Page 2 of 4

The Lakes

Region Mental
Health Center,

Inc..

Laconia. NH

154480-

B001
Laconia $99,835 $102,211 $202,046

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc.,

Keene. NH

177511-

R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$85,230 $87,728 $172,958

Southwestern

Community

Sen/ices. Inc.,
Keene, NH

177511-

R001
Statewide $86,552 $86,552 $173,104

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc.,

Keene. NH

177511-

R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$281,824 $288,544. $570,368

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Derry, NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$267,435 $273,459 $540,894

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Derry, NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$273,230 $303,674 $576,904

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Berlin, NH

177195-

B009
Statewide $130,822 $130,822 $261,644

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Berlin, NH

177195-

B009

Grafton,

Coos, and

Carroll

Counties

$88,959 $89,679 $178,638

Total: $1,606,764 $1,657,969 $3,264,733
•
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His Excellency, Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 4

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021. with the authority
to adjust budget line Items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $1,606,764 $0 $1,606,764

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $1,657,696 $1,657,696

Total $1,606,764 $1,657,969 $3,264,733

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award being issued. Annually, the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) oversees a Continuum of Care Prograrn competitive
application process. As part of this process, the Department is required to provide HUD with each
potential vendor and HUD evaluates vendor applications. Based on that evaluation process. HUD
directs the Department to provide grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors. As
previously stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19. 2019,
Item #46.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Permanent Housing and Coordinated
Entry Programs that deliver rental and leasing assistance, access to supportive services and other
services to individuals who are experiencing homelessness.

Approximately 3,000 individuals will be served from July 1, 2020 to July 1, 2021.

Vendors facilitate movement of participants into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services in order to maximize participants'
abilities to live more independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to address the
problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive and strategic manner.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and
income and.expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  All vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and
accurate entry of data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council.

Page 4 of 4

System, unless the vendor is required by law to use an alternate means of data
collection. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of
shelter and housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2..
Renewal, of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
permanent housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving individuals and
families that are vulnerable in unsafe and deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally, if
data is not collected as required by these contracts, the Department will t>e in non-compliance
with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types
of homeless and permanent supportive services.

Area sen/ed; Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.267/FAIN# NH0014L1T001912. NH0057L1T001910.^
NH0060L1T001907. NH0096L1T001904

Respectfully submitted

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing Program (Cheshire County)

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing Program (Cheshire County)

This 1" Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing Program (Cheshire County) contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or'"Departmeht") and Southwestern
Community Services, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a npnprofit corporation with a place
of business at 63 Community Way, Keene. NH. 03431.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019, (Item #46). the Contractor agreed to perform certain sen/ices based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit 0-1, Revisions, to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended and extended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing.and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.0, Price Limitation, to read:

$172,958

3. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Supportive
' Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to. read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1. NH0019L1T001811 (Grant Year 1)

1.2.4.2. NHg019L1T.001912 (Grant Year 2)

4. Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent Supportive
Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7., Subparagraph 1.2.7.1., to read:

1.2.7.1 Not to exceed $172,958

5. Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section T, Permanent Supportive
Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

Grant Year 1 Grant Year 2

1,2.8.1. Operating Expenses $83,282 $85,780
.1.2.8.2. Administrative Expenses $1.948 $1.948

1.2.8.3. Total Program Amount $85,230'' $87,728

Southwestern Community Services, inc. Amendments Contractor.lnitials

S$-2020.BHS-04-PERMA-18-A01 Page 1 ol3 Date
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing Program (Cheshire County)

All terms and condilions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In full force and
effect This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

Date I ♦ ^ Name: vS-Kyyt
Title: SehS

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

Narroi *45
Title: C.u*«c.C 6itcCfcct'vvc ^CCvt^c

Southwoilem Community Sorvicos. Inc. Amendment #1
SS-2020-BHS-04-P6RMA-18-A01 Pofl® 2 of 3

•iP
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Permanent Housing Program (Cheshire County)

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by thie office. Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date' '
tX SL

rilie:

i hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was epproved by the Governor and Executive CouncI) of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;

Title:

Souinwesiem Community Services, inc. Amendment ei

SS-202O-BHS^-PERMA-1d-A0l Pago 3 of 3

731^
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JefTreyA-Meytn
Cenmlulecer

CbrljllBC L S«aliokII«
Director

JUN06»19pri 2=27 DflS

' ' ' ̂STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH HUMAN SERVICE^
DimiON OF ECOmMIC A HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORO. NH 03301 •
603-271 9474 l.<0<L852-3345 EiL 9474

••F«i:.603-"27M230 TDD Accesi: 1-30D-735-29W www:(Jhhs.nh.tqv

May 28. 2019 ^ .

His Excellency. Governor Chrislqpher T. Sununu . , ■
and the Honorable Council

Stale House
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

■requested ACTION

■ Authorize the'Department of Health-'and Human Services. Division of Economic and Housing
Stability to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors below to provide Perrnanent Housing
and Coordinated Entry Programs and. Supportive Seryices to homeless-the Federal Continuum of Care Program in ah amount not toe*<^edjr606.764. effediv^ Jujy 1. 2019.upon Govemor and Executive Councll approval, through June 30; 2020,. -100% Federal Funds.

Vendor-Name' Project Name Vendor#.. Location
SFY 2020
Arhpupt

Cornrinunily Action v
Partnership Strafford County

Coordinated-Entry 1772ck)-'B0^ Statewide' $38.5.24 . .

Cdnhnriuhity Action Program .
Belknap-Merrimack Counties. ■ Coordinated Entry 177203-B003 Statewide. $86,722

F1T/NHNH. Inc.-
Concord Community
Leasingil Permanent
Housing

157730-B001. Concord' ' .$99,046

FtT/NHNH. Inc. , Concord Permanent
Housing

157730-B001 Concord $68,585

the Lakes Region f^ental ■
Health Center. Inc.

McGrath Street .■
Permanent Housing

154480-B001 Laconia ■ $99,835,

Southwestern Comrhunity ^'
Services, inc. .

Permanent Housing, .
Cheshire County 177511-R001

. Cheshire &
Suliiyan
Counties

$85,230

Southwestern Cpmmuriity
Services. Inc. • • •;

Coordinated Entry ■l77511-'R0p1 Statewide. $86,552

Southwestern Corhmunity ,
SeiviceSi Iric.

Shelter Plus Care
-Permanent Housing

177511,-R001
Cheshire &
■ Sullivan'

Counties.
$281,824

The .l\/lental Health Center for
S.outherh;.New Hampshire
dba CLM Center fpr Life
Manaaemeht'.

Family Housing 1 .
Perrnanent Housing •

174li6-RP01
yyesterh

Rockingham
County'

$267,435
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 4

Vendor Name Project Name Vendor# Location
SPY 2020
Amount

The Mental Health Center for
Southem New Hampshire
dbaCLM Center, for Life
Management

Pernianerit Housing 1 174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$273,230

TivCounty Community Action
Proaram. Inc.

Coordinated Entry 177195-B009 Statewide . $130,822

. Tri-Counly Community Action.
.  Program. Inc.

Peimanent Supportive
Housing 1. Expansion

177195-B009

Grafton,

Coosi and
.Carroll
Counties

$88,959

Total: $1,605,764

needed and justified. . . .

State Fiscal Year

2020

ClassfAccount

102-500731

Class Title

Contracts for Program Services.

Job Number

TBD

Amount

$l;6d6.764

Total . $1,606,764

. . explanation

Tho« rpnijA^ts are sole source because federal regulation^, require the Deparlmenl to specify

: and timing pf grant te^s do ^ agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of ,
CaJe Prgr^grTnlttan^atls^ renewal approval requesis, oocuning in various months
. throughout the year.'- ■

"I W..i"9 r""
Cohlinuum of Care Program.

2019 through June 30.2020.- ■ .. ,i . .
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu ..
end the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 4 ; - ■ ' ^

Using the 'Housing First' model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors wiil. facilitate. participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while,
providing connections with comm.unity and mainstream services to maximize participant's ability to live
more irtdependently:

Hud established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities In their efforts to
address the problems of housirtg and homelessness in a.coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic
fashion. The Continuum of.Care serves three main purposes; .

. *♦ . A strategic planning process for addressing homelessriess in the community.
. • - .A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement In addressing homelessness

•  on a. year-round basis. : "
•  An opportunity for.cotnmunities to submit an application to\he U.S; Department .of Housing

and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and. support services for homeless
individuals and families. ' • . .

The following performance measures/objectives will.be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performairice: ■

■4 'Annuarcompiia.nce revie^ shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance wilh administrative .rules-and contractual agreements.-

•  .Statistical reports'shall be submitted on a.semi-annual basis from all funded vendors, including
'  • ■ various demdgr'aphic.lnformattbri and income and expense repofts including rriatch dollars.-

•  All vendors funded fqr rapid re-housing; transitional, permanent or coordinated entr^ housing,'
or oulreach/supportjye services will-be required to rhaintain timely aqd accurale data entry, iri
the New Hampshire-Homeless Mariagerheniinfqrmatlon System, .unless they are required by
lawto use an allerhate means of data coli.ection. The NH Homeless Managernent Information
Systern ^11 be.the primary, reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelteir and housing

•  . progfanis funded through this contract. .

As.referehce.d In Exhibit C-1 of .each" of these contracts, the D'eparlmentreserves the right to',
extend edch agreement for up-to two .(02). additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, avaifable funding, agreement-of the- parties and approval of the Governor and 'Executive
Council.

.Should, the Gpyempr and Executive Cpuricil not authorize'these requests,-Permanent Housing,
and Coordinated Entry "Program's .and Supportive Services for New Hampshire, homeless Individuals arid
farnilies.may not "be" aval'lable.iri.their corrimunitl.es.'and there may be an Increase i.n demand.for services
placed u^n the region's lo'caiy/elfa/e 'authorilies. Il.rnayalspcduserndiyiduals and/or families to become
horneless; ' . ■ V

Source of funds: .100®/© Federaj 'Funds.-from.the U.S;. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office-of Cornriiuriiiy Plahning arid Development, Calalog of Federal Domeistlc Assistance

'Number (CF.DAj#14.267. .■ ■■ . ' _

-Area'served: •. 'Statewide
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His Excellency. Governor ChrislopherT. Sununu
■  and the Honorable Council
Page 4 of 4 .

In the.event that the F^eral funds become no longer available. General funds will not be.
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

rey A. Meyers
mmissioner-.-

N

TheDepdrUtichtofHeaUh o/irf HumanSer>,icerMissioh i> lojoutcommunhiee andfnmilitiinprowdingopporiunUieiforcilizenttooehievcheoUhuiidtndtpendeuee. . •
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version S7S/1S)

Subject: ConlinmimofCare. Permflneni Housino Program (Cheshire CountvV SS-202Q-BHS.03-PERMA-I8

Notice: This agreement end ell of its anAchmenis shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or propneta/y must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

lOENTIFJCATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pieasani Street

Concord. NH 033010857

1.3 Contrtictor Name
Souihwesiem Community Services, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

63 Community Way
P.O. Box 603

Kcerw.NH 03431^03

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 352-7512

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Compleiion'Daie

June 30, 2O20

1.8 Price Limitation

S85,230

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White. Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

. 11 Contractor Signature

: State OP

1.12 Name end Title of Contractor Signatory
John A. Manning
Chief Executive Officer

1.13 Acknowledgement: State op NH , County of Cheshire

On- 05/23/19 , before the undersigned officer, personalty appeared the-person identified in block IJ2, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block I.I I, and ackn^^)A()gf;^^that s/heexecuted this document in the capacity
i Mndicated in block 1.12. .X
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Ppbjic or Justice of the Peace

gVU-l
fSeall

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Stacey McGilverv, Notary

i  131
 :■ S-

1.14 Slate Agenoy^ignnture nd Title of Slate Agency Signatory

AdmlTiistration.'Uivision of Personnel OloppUcabte) *16 Approval by S^e N.H. Department oTAdm'Wiisiratioh.'Divislotrof Personnel Oj applicable)
By: Director, On:

. 17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:

Page I of 4
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I. EMPLOYMEPfTOFCONTRACTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The Sute of New Hampshire, acting
through (he agency identified in block I. I ("State"), engagea
contractor identified in block 1.3 C'Contracior") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both. ideniiHed and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which Is incorporated herein by reference

("Services").,

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agreemen( to the
corttrary, and subjec( (o (he approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of (he Stale of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become cfTeciive on (he date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 I f the Contractor commences the Services prior lo.the
EPfective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior

. to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
becorrie effective, the Stale shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
Specified in block 1.7.

4. conditional NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, entl in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have (he right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving (he Contractor notice of such (ermination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account idenllfied in blwk 1.6 in the event funds in (hat
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PWCE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT D which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
pcrfonmnce hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The Slate reserves (he right to offset from any amounts
Otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permicied by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA S0:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this .Agreement to the
conu^ry, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total ofall payments auihoriced, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTfUGTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Conlracior shall comply with all mtutcs, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing arxJ speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor.. In addition, the Conirecior
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Conuector shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Depanment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit (he State or United States access to any of (he
Contractor's books, records and accounts for (he purpose of
ascertaining compliartce tviih all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditior^s of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged.in the Services shall be
qualified to p^orm the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to.do so under all applicable

laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in uriiing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofTicial, who is maicrially involved in the
procurement, administration or pcrfoimance of this

of 4
Contractor (nilials

Dale
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Agreemem. This provision shall survive (ermination of (his
Agrecmenl.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be (he State's representaiive. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of (his Agreemeni,
the Contracung Officer's decision shall be final for ihc Slate.

8. EVENTOr DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of (he
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

C'Evcni of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any rcpon required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition

of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may lake any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser speciflcaiion of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, efTective two
(2) days af\er giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Comraaor a wrineh notice specifying ihe Event
ofDefault and suspending ell payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the ponion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Conunctor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; ond/or
8.2.4 treat Ihe Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. data/access/conkioentiality/

preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
infomution and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreemeni. including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, lerien, memortinda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All distB and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of Ihe State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In Ihe event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than Ihe completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (IS) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail ail Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
maner, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Repon shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreemeni the Contractor ii in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive ony benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise inmsfer any
interest in this Agreemeni without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties i^ened agaittsi the State, its officers
and employes, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to (he State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contnctor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOper occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverege form covering all
propeny subject to subparograph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State ofNew Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4
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14.3 The Contraoor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a ccnific&ie<s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor. certificate(s) of
insurance for ail renewal(s) of Insurance required under this
Agreement no later than ihiny (30) days prior to the expiration
date of etch of the insurance policies. The certificatefs) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a douse requiring the Insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior wrinen
notice of cancellaiion or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and wanants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensaiion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
rtquiremenisof N.H. RSA chapter 281-A. Conrractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A artd any
applicable renewBl(s) thereof, which shall be attached and ore
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers* Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcomrttcior or employee ofContracior, which might
arise under applicable Sute ofNew Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OE BREACH. No failure by (he Sute to
enforce any provisions hereof offer any Event of Default shall
be deemed o waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Defouli shall be deemed a
svaiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be decrt)ed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AM ENOM ENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the panics hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Sute of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumsunccs pursuant to
Sute law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreemem shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Sute of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the ponies and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD Parties. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words conuined
therein shall in ho way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpreution, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc Incorpomtcd herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court ofcompeteni jurisdiction to
be conuary to any sute or federal law, the remaining
provisions of (his Agreement will remain in full force and
efTcct.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrccmcni, which may
be executed in o number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deerned an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
undersunding between the parties, and supersedes oil prior
Agreements end undcrsundings relating hereto.

Page 4 ofd
Contractor Initials.
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SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (6HS)
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. The State,
as the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, and/or. the recipient of the CoC
funding, has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence In the
application process. However, the State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In
no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the
Contractor prior to the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient. in accordance with 2 CFR 20D.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithslanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part S78.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector
General, and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access.to all books, documents, papers, or other records
of the Contractor that are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NORA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102>
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.8. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data Into the New Hampshire Homeless
Managemenl Information System (NH Hf\AIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy. Including
specific Information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

SCSPKP(Ch»»hlf«C«wnty) EiMttilA Contractor InftUlt
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1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for ail projects funded by the
CoC Program. Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program serving approximately
twenty-eight (26) homeless individuals and or families with a mental illness, substance use Issue
or other disabilities, and which includes, but Is not limited to;

2.2.1. Utilization of the 'Housing First* model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhaust^ to help a participant
maintain housing.

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and. at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance wHh 24 CFR 570 and must establish and maintain
sufficient records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
including;

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation
related to establishing and operating e CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall nhaintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelessness' status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Conlractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR S78.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes." but is
not limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking, only if the original violence Is not already documented In the program
participant's case file. This may be written observation of the , housing or service
provider; a letter or other documentation from a victim service provider, social worker,
legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other
professional from whom the victim has sought assistance; medical or dental records;
court records or law enforcement records; or written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence occurred or by the head of household.

Qvi
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating
violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party,
such as a friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence.' This may be
written observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation
from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has
sought assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records;
law enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification
by the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing
assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the
Contractor must keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and Income received before the dale of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certrfication by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verlficalion are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those

program participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted
the service package accordingly, and including case management services as
provided in 24 CFR 578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with (he termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR57B.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supporlive services
provided under the Contrador's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually

and that (he service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

SOS PMP(Ch«hb» County) Contf»ctof
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2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements In 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 57B.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest
policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95. including records supporting any
exceptions to the personal conflid-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g).

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements In accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b).

2.6.3. Affirmativelv Furthering Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99. as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD.

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Reouirements in 24 CFR'85.36 and 24 CFR part 64.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor-shall develop and Implement written procedures to
ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any Individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall t>e kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and state and federal laws and regulations;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
Operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public,
except as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subreclpient and
consistent with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
■ microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years follovring the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period In excess of
the five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Pfoaram Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project In the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed In section l.i. Exhibit A; and
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3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the e}(tent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five
(S) wording days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall Inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

6. Pertormanceftfleasures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the HUO New Project
Application, federal fiscal year 2018. #SF-424; and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined In 24 CFR Par! 578: Continuum of
Care Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A.
in accordance with the CoC Program Interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program as outlined in Section
2.2. Exhibit A and as outlined in other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project-outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Participants experience increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources: employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access and referrals; and

6.2.1.2.3. Sen/ice Coordination Partners for educational, vocational, employment and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3., Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Supoortlve Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). as follows;

"1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDAtf: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NHOO19L1TOO1011 .

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care. Permanent Supportive Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. not to exceed $85,230

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Operating Expenses: $83,282

1.2.8.2. Administrative Expenses: $1.&48

1.2.8.3. Total program amount: $05,230

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor,covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Mousing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only In accordance with procedures,
requirerrients. and principles specified In 2 CFR part 200.
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2.3. If the Contractor (s not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
' one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in 'Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions." within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs; As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs' shall mean all expenses
directly or Indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of lhe Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment In accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State'. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of.Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and. in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible (or all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.-3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described In 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart 0 of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records Include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible,- volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Pavment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility. Exhibit 8. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as spedHed in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through ihe U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments;

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tehth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit 8..
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

hou5inQsupportsinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial infofmation if requested by ttte State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may-
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disellcw any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made. It shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture. ^

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and 6. or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

'  4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parlies and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense Eilaibllitv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit 8 from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. OoeratinQ Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housir^;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities: and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included In the lease.

5.3. Suooortive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include;

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
particip3nt(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness, including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance' and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer Instruction, on-lhe-job instnjction. services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.6. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal senrices. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
per8on(8) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless individual or faniily's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
haver have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental'
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.

'  These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and Intervention, as well as identifying potential
program parlicipants. are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and Individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Ir^patient detoxirication and other Inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described In 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(6) (1) - (16)
of this section Is being directly delivered by the recipient or subredpient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section Is not
an eliglbfe cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4.' Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operatir^
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months: or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for tonger-than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size. type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing funds
only: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance; Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choo^ housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subredpients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing prograrri component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
redpient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

' 5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the'owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which Is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
byeither party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include;

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under.this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs Include, but
are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the following;

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program^ involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rate share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following;

SOS PHP(CrMtAWCo.) EW&he Contracwrli«Uthl^£2
SS-7020«HS-04-P£RUA-1« P*(t»7«li0



DocuSign Envelope ID: C771E174-A5CE-4369-8526-77A971EB78E1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit B

5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparlr>g program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subreciplents and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements; ^

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the progran^
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
In sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. atKJve. Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business In carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third parly contracts or
agreements, including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services'required for administration of the
program. Includir>g such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, offtce supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on.Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibililies under 24 CFR 576.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
' to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
' Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organlzation(s). or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.
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5.6.1. Requirements:

5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a staicture
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size. type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-detemtined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord In
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy, charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8)

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in. the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Properly damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to Itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with al) State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program partidpants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified In HUD regulations (24
CFR 576.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
deaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financtai Management System

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of. and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part v
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
ur>der the Contract shall be used only as paymeni to the Contractor for services provided to etigible
individuals end. in the furtherance of (he aforeseid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:'

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eiigibilily
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination : Eligibility determinations shad be made on forms provided by
the Department for that^purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Oepartmeni.

3. Documentation'; In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include ell
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests, the Contractor shall furnish the Department vn'th all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

f

4. Fetr Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants end agrees that an applicants for services.shall be permitted to nil out
an application form and (hat each applicani or rs-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to afair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratultlee or Kickbacke: The Contractor agrees (hat It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence ihe performance ol the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Slaia may terminate this Contract and any sub-conlracl or sub-agreement if It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, empbyees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or ineny
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood end agreed by the parlies
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to eny individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for eny services provided
prior to the dale on which the individual eppiios for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Condltlone of Purchaeo: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed lo obDgale or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible ind'ividuals or other third party
funders for such service, if al any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. Ihe Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuels
or other third party funders. the Departmertt may elect to:

7.t. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from eny future paymeni to the Contractor Ihe amount of any prbr reimbursement in

excess of costs;

C - SpodBl Provbiona Contractor Inslixl^rrilisl^W
Pago t ol S Oslo



OocuSign Envelope ID; C771E174-A5CE-4369-8526-77A971EB78E1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of iryjividuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Depedment for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individuat who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services et
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Mslntonanco of Records; In addition to the ollgibiiity records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees lo maintain the followtng records during (ho Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents end other data evidencing end reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, end all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, al! lagers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
ln<kind contributions, labor time cerds. payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during (he Contract Period, which records shall include all records of applicalionand
eligibility (including eD forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recammer>ded (hat the report be prepared in eccordance with (he provision of
Offtce of Management end Budget Circular A-t33. "Audits of Slates. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities end Functions, issued by the US Generel Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit end Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services, end any of their
designated representatives shall have access to at) reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in er^y way in limitation of obligations of the Contracl. it Is
understood and agreed by (he Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any slate
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Depanment. ell payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidontlallty of Records; Ml information, reporis. and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the pierfonmance of the services and the Contract shell be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Cohirector. provided however, that pursuant lo state laws and the regutelions of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connection with their official duties and lor purposes
directly connected to the administration of the asrvices and (he Contrect; end provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of (he Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on wrlnen consent of the recipient, his
ettomey or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants end conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Roporte: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at ihefollowing
times if requested by the Oepartment.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim fcnancial reports containing a detailed-descriptionof

all costs end non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the dale of the report and
'  containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Oepartment to

justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Deportment.

11.2. Final Report; A Tmal report shall bo submitted within thirty (30) doys ofior the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shell be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives staled In the Proposal
and other Information required by (he Department.

12. Completion of Sorvlcee: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of unit's provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, (he Contract and all the obligations of the parlies hereunder {except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract ere to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall tehninate, provided however, (hat If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Conirector as
costs hereunder the Depertment shall retain the right, el its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as ere disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credlta; All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefotlowing
statement:*

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Hoallh and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the Stale of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources es were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Deparimenl of Health end Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownerahlp: All materials (wrihen, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shed have prior approve! from DHHS before printing, production,

. distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any end ell original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures,- resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Conirector shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facllltloa: Compliance with Lawe and Rogulationo: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county end municipal euihoritles and with any direction of any Pubtic Offtcer or offcers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or (he pro\nsion of (he services at such facility, if any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms end
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants end agrees (hat, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with ell rules, orders, regulations, end requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more end has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintein a currant EEOP on Tile and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifyirtg that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or maintain an-EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions ere exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but ere required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certrfication Forms are available at: http;//www.o)p.usd<^8bout/ocr^(6/cert.pdl.

17. Limited Englieh Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, notionaiohgin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 er^ Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Sim^ined Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

(Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(d) This contracf end employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
end rerhedies In (he pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights end protections under 41 U. S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.906 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contrector shell inseh the substance of this clause, including this peragreph (c). in all
subcontracts over (he simplified acquisition threshold. j

I

19. Subcontractors: OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use sut>contractor8 with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions'(or efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shell retain (he responsibility end accountability for (he function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ebillty to perform the delegated
function(8). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subrantraclor and provides for revoking the deiegafion or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contrectuel
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following;

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
(he function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities andreporling
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor (he subcontractor's perfonmance on an ongoing basis

Eitftibii C - Special Provtjions Coniracior inlitaU,
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, end when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies dericiencies or areas for Improvement are identified, the Contractor shad
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitlona:

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost end accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules end orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Oepadment and containing a description of the services end/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
underthe Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor Is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shell
mean that period of time or that spedHed activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEOERAiySTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules; orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
at! such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from lime to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

owtyn
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE .

1. Revisions to Form P47, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Condilionai Nature of Aoreement. is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstandin9 any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of (he Stale
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In pan,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the'appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any stale or federal legislative or executive ectlon that reduces, eilminetes. or otherwise
modifies,the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Senrices provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for eny payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available furtds. In
the event of e reduction, temiinalion or modificalion of epproprlaled or available funds, the
State shisll have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shell have the right to .reduce, termiriate or modify services under (his Agreement
immediately upon giving the - Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modirication. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(8) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account in. the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is emended by adding (he following lenguege;

10.1 The Stete may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
-  the Stele, 30 days after giving the Contractor written r>otice that the Stale is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop end submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. Including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State relaied to the termination of the Agreement and Transidon Plan
and shell provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to (he Slate
as requested.

10.4 In the event that sen/ices under the Agreement, including but nol limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement ere iransitloned to having services delivered by another
entity including conlrecled providers or the State, the Contractor shell provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.6 The Conirector shell-establish a method of notifying clients end other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Slate as described above.

2. Renewal

2,1, The Department reserves the right to exisnd this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties end approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Etf^lbltC-1 - Revtsioro/Excepilonslo SlBrtdanl Conirsci Ler^usge ContractorlnHiai»*'y * •/
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG.FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Wor1<place Act of 198B (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 el eeq.). and further agrees to have the Contrector's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute Ihe following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5lSl-5i60 of the Orug-Free
Worliplace Act of 1963 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21661-21691), and require certirication by grentees(and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintein a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of Ihe
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certincalion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
lerrninalion of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Ccncord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee cedifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying Ihe actions thai will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any eveilable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug ebuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in (he performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under Ihe grant, (he employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify ihe employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparegraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such convtciion.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted emptoyee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExNM 0 - Ceniriution regerding Drug Frte Vendor inhlsit
Wori(pl8ce Requirements
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has designated a centrai point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shali include the
identification number(8) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropnate personnel action against such on employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to partdpale satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other opprophate agency;

1.7. Making e good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implemenlotion of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2. 1.3. 1.4. 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grentee may insert in the space provided below the $ite(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Ptace of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file thai ere not identified here.

Vendor Name: Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

05/23/19
Nam^ John A. wanning
Title/ (^hief Executive Officer

EiWbliO-Ccitl/iMiionregBfOingOrugFree Vendor Wllats.
Workplace Requkemer^i# I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the. General Provisions execute Ihe following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Progranis (indicate opplicable program covered):
lemporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Bloch Grant Program under Title XX ■
'Medicald Program under Title XtX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wilt be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, e Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-coniraclor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to innuence en officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
en officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-t.)

3. The undersigned shal require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-owards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify end disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when (his transaction
was made or entered into. Submission ol this certificalion is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who foils to file the required
certification shall be subject 10 a civil penally of not less than 510,000 end not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

05/23/19

innina /Date Narye: John A. fanning
Till/ Chief Executive Officer.

ExhiWt e - Cenlflcaion RegBrtfing Lobbying Vender Iniiiaii
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CERTIFICATION REGARDINQ DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identiried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive QfTice of the President. Executive Order 12S49 end 45 CFR Perl 76 regarding Oebarment.
Suspension, end Other Responsibility Matters, end further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certifrcation. The certification or explanation wiO-be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or en explanation shell disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. the certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it.is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered en erroneous cerlificdlion, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was eaoneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered ̂ ansaction,' 'debarred,* 'suspended.' 'ineligible.* 'lower tier covered
transaction.' 'participant.' 'person.' 'primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal,* end
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
^Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, il shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant luriher agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled 'Certincalion Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion t
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* provided by OHMS, without modificeiion, in ell lower tier covered
transactions and In ell solicitations for lower tier covered iransacUons.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered tronsaclion that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certiftcation Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which il determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).-

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Extilbtt f - CcftJflcsOon ReginSlng Oe&snnent. Suspension Vendor Inltlel
And Other Reiponsibility Matters
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informalion of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, rf a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered tranaaclion with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may lerminaie this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TfWNSACTIONS

11. The prospective primerv peiticipanl certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, Chat it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded froni covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:.
11.2. have not within o three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtalnirtg, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or e contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, felsiftcation or destnjction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for olhenA'ise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certiricatton; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. Stale or local) terminated for cause or defeutt.

12. Where the prospective-primary participant is unable to ceilrfy to any of the statements In this
cerirftcation, such prospective participant shall ettech an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), (he prospective lower tier participant, es
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its prindpals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shell attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this propose! (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certificattcn Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineiigibilily, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transeclions." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in atl solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name; Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

05/23/19

Dale Nar];te; Jonn A. Manning
Chief Executive Officer

n A. Mannii
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CERTIFICATION OF COfyiPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor idenlirted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identiried in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cenrficaticn:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrentees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrlminalion requirements, which may Include:'

• the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act oi 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37e9d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the bosls of race, color, religion, netionel origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the dvil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

• the Civil Rights Act of 1664 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal .financiel
assistance from discriminating oh the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabililalion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits rectpienls of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benetits. in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), vrhich prohibits
discrimination end ensures equal oppohunliy for persons with disabilities in employmeni. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, end transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683. 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance, it does not include
employmeni discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminelion; Equal Employmeni Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. .13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamentet principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with fallh-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. 38 (U.S. Oepartmenl of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
.Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Netionel Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Progroni for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing acttvilles in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificdte set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certiricatlon or violation of the certiricetion shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

EitfAilG
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of (he finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within (he Department of Health end Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of (he General Provisions, to execute the following
certificeiion:

I. By signing end submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

05/23/19

Date Njfme: John A. Manning
Chief Executive Officer
Jonn A. Mafinir

EiiMbli G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), reouires that smoking not be permitted in eny portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity end used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local govemmeiits, by Federal grant, contract; loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does nol apply to children's services provided in privele residences, facililies funded solely by
Medicare or'Mediceid funds, end portions of fedlilies used for inpetienl drug or elcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
S1000 per day end/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the Generel Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the Generel Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees lo make reasonable efforts to comply with
ell applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of f994.

Vendor Name: Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

05/23/19

Date Na^e; joijm A. Manning
Chief Executive Officer

Exhltiii H - CenlAcstion Regsrdtng Vendor Inliitli
Environmoniil Tobacco S^ke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160-and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity'
shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c; 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
in 45 CFR Sedion 164.501.

e. 'Data Aggregalion' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Ad. TItleXIII, Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Ad of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Ad of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individuar in 45 CFR Sediori 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United Slates
Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section.1&4.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that.renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Paris 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act. "

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information,

a. Business Associate shall riot use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Including but not limited to ail
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

(

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuani to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to inaking any such disclosure, (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially end
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bysi^ess

3/20U E;dilbfl I Vcndo/ IriUa
KeaRh iniurancs PofUbllity Ad
Buslnets Associate Agreemeni

Page 2 of 6 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: C771E174-A5CE-4369-8526-77A971EB78E1

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Humsn Sorvlcoa

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be'bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObUaatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an Impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health Information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been'

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete Ihe risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findirtgs of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shalfcomply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach f^otification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to Ihe same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be rec^vtfi^ PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P*37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determihe
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or.a record about an individual contained In a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for

'  amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to. respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528..

j. . Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PH), Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity.may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days fonvard such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests, Howeyer, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the Individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or, destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thgse
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Busings
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business.Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
, of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.606 or 45 CFR Sectioni 64.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covefed
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate'bf the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein-as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the '
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered.Entity. If Covered Entity
detennines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall, have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference In the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit t, to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership, The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Ruj
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SeareQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the Invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnihcation provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Oopartmeni of Health and Human Services Southwestern Community Senrices. Inc.

e of the VendorThe State p. ^ _ Name

I hAMi(u\ii/n rJl'^ ̂ uoL
Sionature of Authorised Represenfjatlve Signature of A/rthorized Representative

ir
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

John A. Manning

Name of Authorized Representative

Chief Executive Officer

Title of Authorized Representative

05/23/19
Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCV
ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accounlebllity and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated Hrst-tier sub^rants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health end Human Services.(OHMS) must report the fotlowing informetion for any,
aubeword or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purp>ose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS d)
10. Total compcnsalion and names of the top five executives if: '

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant redplanls must submit FFATA required data by Ihe end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
end 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification; >
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed infonmalion as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.-

Vendor'Name: Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

05/23/19

Date N^e: Joh»/A. Mannirfg
Chief Executive Officer

A. Mannirfc

ExNbii J - Certification Aegflrdlrtg iTie Federal Fundlr>g Vendor Inlilfll)
Aocountebility And Treniperency Act (PFATA) Compliance
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FORM A

As the Vendor identined in Section V3 of the Generai Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
t>elpvy listed questions are true and accurate. '

1. The PUNS number for vour entity is: 081251361

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed hscal year, did your-business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 1t2 above is NO, slop here

If the answer to tlf2 above is YES, please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to infonmation about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1985?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

if the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most tiighly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUiOHHS/iiori)

Eidilbll J - C«riiricaUon Regsnjing the Federal Fur^ding
Accountatitlity And Trar\sparency Act {FFATA} CompQence
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OHHS information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The foilowing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach* means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health

Information.' Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach' in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security incident" shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 000-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce. -

3. 'Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data' means ail confidential Information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, flr^ancial. public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personalty Identifiable Information.

Confidential information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFl), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
OHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident* means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' means any network or'segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PF),
PHI or confidential OHHS data.

8. 'Personal Information" (or 'PI") means infcimation which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
Information'as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,.
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name: etc.

9. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information* (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information* means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR.

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, mainlain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any.additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to (he terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End Useir may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3." Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvpted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of

•  persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
.  mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks.' End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
stRJCture the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confrdential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deietlon cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices, if End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy'the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention.

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ail electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures hs complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

- 0. Disposition ,

1. If the Contrector will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When nb longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanllization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at.
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data, erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A, Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services,

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information Irfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department conndential information
where applicable.

A. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If lhe''Coniractor will be subcontracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines - specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirerhents that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

6. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will worX with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabitiiies that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not" store, knowingly or.unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
.make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; aedit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pi and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). OHMS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164) that govern protections for ir>dividually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less lhan the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://VAArtw.nh.gov/doitArendof/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process, the Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer end the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users;

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information al all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
- PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and biaing
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from' OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as nomduty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in ell cases,
such data must be encrypted at alt times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguard's, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. OHMS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addilion to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

t. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-0:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT.

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

OHHSPrivacyOfficef@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs,nh.gov
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